Public Document Pack

Oldham
Council

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Agenda

Date Wednesday 14™ January 2026

Time 6.00 pm

Venue Room 1, Level 2, JR Clynes Building, Cultural Quarter, Greaves Street,

Oldham, OL1 1AL
Notes 1. Declarations of Interest - If a member requires advice on any item

involving a possible declaration of interest which could affect his/her ability
to speak and/or vote he/she is advised to contact Alex Bougatef or Peter
Thompson at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

2. Further details regarding this meeting are available from Peter
Thompson, email: peter.thompson@oldham.gov.uk

3. Public Questions - Any Member of the public wishing to ask a question at
the above meeting can do so only if a written copy of the question is
submitted to the contact officer by 12.00 noon on Friday, 9" January 2026.

4. Filming - The Council, members of the public and the press may
record/film/photograph or broadcast this meeting when the public and the
press are not lawfully excluded. Any member of the public who attends a
meeting and objects to being filmed should advise the Constitutional
Services Officer who will instruct that they are not included in the filming.

Please note that anyone using recording equipment both audio and visual
will not be permitted to leave the equipment in the room where a private
meeting is held.

Membership of the AUDIT COMMITTEE:

Mr. G. Page (Independent Member and Chair of the Committee)

Mr. S. Green (independent Member and Vice-Chair of the Committee)
Councillors Al-Hamdani, Aslam, Chauhan, Chowhan, Ghafoor, Malik,
Quigg, Rustidge and Sykes


mailto:peter.thompson@oldham.gov.uk

Item No

Oldham

Council

Apologies For Absence

Urgent Business

Urgent business, if any, introduced by the Chair
Declarations of Interest

To Receive Declarations of Interest in any Contract or matter to be discussed at
the meeting.

Public Question Time

To receive Questions from the Public, in accordance with the Council’s
Constitution.

Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 3 - 8)

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 26™
November 2025.

External Audit - Update Report

An update report from the Council's External Auditors, Forvis Mazars (report to
follow).

Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2026/27 (Pages 9 - 32)

A report which sets out the proposed Treasury Management Strategy for
2026/27, to support the Corporate Objectives of the Council.

Internal Audit Progress Report Quarter 3 - 2025/26 (Pages 33 - 42)

A report that details progress made against the agreed audit and counter fraud
plan, in Quarter 3 of 2025/26 (October — December 2025).

Audit Committee Work Programme - 2025/26 (Pages 43 - 48)

A report which details the Audit Committee’s work programme for 2025/26.



Present:

Agenda Iltem 5

AUDIT COMMITTEE
26/11/2025 at 6.00 pm

Oldham
Mr G. Page (Independent Chair) Council

Councillors Al-Hamdani, Z. Ali (substituting for Councillor
Chowhan), Chauhan, S. Hussain (substituting for Councillor
Aslam), Kenyon (Substituting for Councillor Sykes), Quigg,
Rustidge and Wahid (substituting or Councillor Ghafoor)

Also in Attendance:

Councillor Shah (Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member or
Growth)

Councillor Jabbar (Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for
Finance, Corporate Services and Sustainability)

Yogita Das-Patel (Forvis Mazars LLP)

Fiona Greenway (Executive Director of Resources)

Lee Walsh (Director of Finance)

Alexander Bougatef (Director of Legal)

James Postle (Senior Finance Manager)

Vicky Lambert (Senior Finance Manager)

Peter Thompson (Constitutional Services)

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Aslam,
Chowhan, Ghafoor and Sykes and from Mr S. Green
(Independent Vice Chair of Audit Committee).

URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair advised the meeting that the Council, at its meeting
on 12t November 2025, had confirmed the appointment of Mr
Stuart Green as the Audit Committee’s Vice Chair and second
Independent Member.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest received.
PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

There were no public questions for this meeting of the Audit
Committee to consider.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The Committee considered the Minutes of the previous meeting
held on 22" October 2025, noting that a more detailed
discussion on items 10 (Members Allowances) and 18 (Progress
update on Audit Opinion Reports contributing to the 2024/25
Limited Assurance Annual Audit Opinion).

Resolved:

That subject to the above comments the minutes of the meeting
of the Audit Committee held on 22"® October 2025, be approved.

OLDHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL - 2024/25 FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Page 3



The Audit Committee received a report that presented
clarification on the current position relating to Oldham Borough
Council’s Financial Statements for the year 2024/25. In
considering the report, the Committee was reminded that it was
the council body that was charged with scrutiny and approval of
the Statement of Accounts. The submitted report presented,
therefore, an update on the progress of the auditing and
approval of the 2024/25 Statement of Accounts, further to
previous consideration thereof, by the Committee, at its meeting
held on 23 July 2025.

It had initially been expected that the External Auditor would
have completed the audit by the time of this Audit Committee
meeting, but prior to the issue of the agenda papers the Council
was notified that although the audit of the Accounts remains
substantially complete, the External Auditors are awaiting a
response back from their technical team in respect of the
Manchester Airport Shares Valuation and with some further
review work remaining to be completed in relation to lease and
Private Finance Initiative accounting.

Therefore, approval was sort to delegate the formal approval of
the Accounts to the Chair of the Audit Committee in conjunction
with the Director of Finance and the External Auditor.

The External Auditor, in the report that was considered at Minute
7, below, had advised that the audit of the Council was
substantially complete. A further update report would be
presented to the next scheduled Audit Committee meeting, on
14™ January 2026 and Members would be notified when the
Statement of Accounts for 2024/25 had been fully signed off.

In preparing the report the Director of Finance reported that
consultation had taken place thereon with the Council’'s External
Auditors, Forvis Mazars LLP.

In addition, members of the public have had an opportunity to
inspect the Council’'s Statement of Accounts and supporting
documents during the 30-day public inspection period which
concluded on 11" August 2025.

In considering the report Members of the Committee sought
clarification on several issues:

a. The changes to the Statements that had been added
since the last consideration of the 2024/25 Financial
Statements at the Committee’s meeting on 23 July
2025. The Director of Finance, in reply, noted that several
changes had been made to the documents and an
updated version of the documents that specifically
highlighted the changes that had been made, would be
circulated to members of the Committee.

b. In terms of the value for money recommendations,
contained in Appendix 1 to the submitted report, a
member sought clarification on the effective budget
setting and monitoring processes reported and sought
assurances as to how this conclusion had been arrived
at. It was noted that the bulk of the Councils expenditure
was taken up by Children’s and Adults Social Care

Page 4

Oldham

Council



services. The demand for these services had increased
significantly in recent years and, as a large proportion of
this expenditure was mandatory mitigations had been
included in the Council’s budgetary planning for 2026/27 Oldham
and future years by such measures as a council-wide Council
recruitment freeze apart from essential care sector
vacancies.

. The Council was, in 2026/27, on course to set a balanced
budget and the budget setting process for 2026/27
through to 2029/30 was being eased somewhat as the
government was issuing local authorities with a three-
year settlement, which would help the council with its
forward financial planning.

. A member noted that the authority had invested
significant funding recently in the acquisitions of
properties to be used as residential children’s homes,
with the aim of reducing future expenditure on out-of-
borough placements.

. The Committee noted the revised population projections
for the Borough of Oldham with the likelihood of an
increased ageing population that would, in time, lead to
more people using Oldham’s Adult Care Social services.
A Member sought clarification on the levels of reserves
that the Council was utilising to balance its budget and
asked if the Council’s Director of Finance would be
issuing a ‘Section 114 Notice’, which was a formal
declaration by a UK local council's Chief Finance Officer
that its projected spending will exceed its income,
meaning it can't balance its budget, triggering restrictions
on all non-essential new spending except for protecting
vulnerable people and statutory services. In this regard
the Director of Finance reported that at the budget setting
Council meeting, on 4" March 2026, he would be
providing a report that outlined his opinion as to whether
the Council’s budget setting arrangements were ‘robust’.
. A Member sought assurances from the Cabinet Member
for Finance, Corporate Services and Sustainability that he
accepted the recommendations from the external
auditors, Forvis Mazars LLP, that the Council should
review its budget setting processes. The Cabinet
Member, in reply, advised that he did fully accept the
recommendations and that he would, wherever
necessary, update future meetings of the Committee
thereon.

The Executive Director of Resources advised the meeting that
she would be asking the Council’s Head of Audit and Counter
Fraud to monitor and audit each of the savings’ proposals that
are agreed by the Council and details thereon will be included in
the Committee’s Work Programme.

Resolved:
1. That the Committee notes and approves the reported

changes to the Statement of Accounts 2024/25.

2. That the Audit Committee delegates authority to approve

the Council’'s 2024/25 Statement of Accounts to the Chair
Page 5



of the Audit Committee after consultation thereon with the
Director of Finance and on receipt of appropriate advice
from the Authority’s External Auditor. In this regard the
Council, the Director of Finance explained, was lobbying Oldham
the government to release additional resources, to ease Council
the financial burdens that Oldham Council was facing, in
common with many other local authorities throughout
England.
3. The Committee endorses the undertaking of the Director
of Finance, in due course, to circulate to members of the
Committee, the recorded changes that had been made to
the Financial Statements for 2024/25.
4. The Committee endorses the undertaking of the
Executive Director of Resources to monitor and audit
each of the savings’ proposals that are agreed by the
Council and that details thereon, will be presented to
future meetings of the Committee.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT - QUARTER 2 (JULY
- SEPTEMBER) 2025/26

The Audit Committee received a report of the Director of
Finance which presented the Authority’s Treasury Management
update report as at the end of Quarter 2, 2025/26 (30t
September 2025).

In considering the report member so the Committee were
advised that in April 2023 Oldham Borough Council had
Authority adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services:
Code of Practice (the CIPFA Code), which required that the
Council should approve, as a minimum, treasury management
semi-annual and annual outturn reports. The report before this
Audit Committee meeting included the requirement outlined in
the 2021 Code for quarterly reporting of the treasury
management prudential indicators. Oldham Council’s treasury
management strategy for 2025/26 was approved at the Budget
Council on 6" March 2025.

The Authority had borrowed and invested substantial sums of
money and was therefore exposed to financial risks including
the loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of changing
interest rates. The successful identification, monitoring and
control of risks remained central to the Authority’s treasury
management strategy.

The submitted report provided an additional update and included
the requirements that were set out in the 2021 Code. The
submitted report therefore, established the key Treasury
Management issues for Members’ information and review and
outlined the following:
¢ An economic update for the first half of 2025/26 (External
Context).
¢ Net Borrowing and Investments (Local Context).
e Areview and updates of the Council’s current treasury
management position.

Page 6



e Council Borrowing.

e Treasury Investment Activity.

e Treasury Performance for the first half of the year.

e Compliance. Oldham
e Treasury Management Prudential Indicators. Council

The report advised that the Council operated a balanced budget,
which broadly meant that cash raised during the year would
meet its cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management
operation was to ensure that this cash flow was adequately
planned, with surplus monies being invested with low-risk
counterparties, providing at least an adequate liquidity, initially,
before considering optimising investment returns.

A second main function of the treasury management service
was the funding of the Council’s capital plans. These capital
plans provided a guide to the borrowing need of the Council,
essentially the longer-term cash flow planning to ensure the
Council can meet its capital spending obligations. The
management of longer-term cash often involved arranging long
or short-term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses,
and on occasion, any debt previously drawn may be
restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives. Therefore,
therefore, treasury management was defined as .... “the
management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows,
its banking, money market, and capital market transactions; the
effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and
the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.”

In considering the report, Members of the Audit Committee were
mindful that it would be presented to the Cabinet at its meeting
on 15t December 2025 and to the Council on 10" December
2025.

Resolved:

1. That the Audit Committee supports the Treasury
Management Half Year Review report, and the Treasury
Management activity and projected outturn for 2025/26.

2. That the Audit Committee recommends to the Cabinet
and Council that the recommendations contained within
the report be formally approved and adopted.

The meeting started at 6.00pm and ended at 7.30pm

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

©

Report to Audit Committee Oldham

Council

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
2026/27

Including the Annual Investment Strategy, Borrowing
Strategy and Prudential Indicators

Portfolio Holder: Clir Abdul Jabbar MBE, Deputy Leader &

Cabinet Member for Finance, Corporate Services and
Sustainability

Officer Contact: Lee Walsh, Director of Finance & Section 151
Officer

Report Author: Paula Buckley, Finance Manager & James Postle,
Senior Finance Manager

Ext. 4247

14 January 2026

Reason for Decision
To present to Audit Committee, the Treasury Management Strategy for 2026/27.
Executive Summary

The report outlines the Treasury Management Strategy for 2026/27, the Annual Investment
Strategy, Borrowing Strategy, and Prudential Indicators.

The Council is required through regulations supporting the Local Government Act 2003 to
‘have regard to’ the Prudential Code. It is required to produce an annual Treasury Strategy
for borrowing and to prepare an Annual Investment Strategy setting out the Council’'s
policies for managing its investments and for giving priority to security and liquidity of those
investments.

The Strategy for 2026/27 covers.

«  Economic Update
* Prospects for Interest Rates

Page 9



« The Current Balance Sheet and Treasury Position

+ Liability Benchmark

«  The Borrowing Strategy

* Debt Rescheduling

* The Investment Strategy

* Approved Counterparties, risk management and Investment Limits

*  Treasury Indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council

The report therefore outlines the implications and key factors in relation to each of the above
Capital and Treasury Management issues and makes recommendations with regard to the
Treasury Management Strategy for 2026/27.

The report includes the most recently available economic background commentary which
reflects the position at December 2025.

The proposed Treasury Management Strategy is presented to Audit Committee to enable
scrutiny of the report before its further consideration in the budget setting process. Any
comments from Audit Committee will be incorporated into the reports presented to Cabinet
and Council.

Recommendation

That Audit Committee considers and commends to Council as appropriate, the:

=

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) Projections as per paragraph 2.4.1,;

2. Projected Balance Sheet position as at 31 March 2026 and future years as per
paragraph 2.4.1;

Liability Benchmark as per section 2.5

Borrowing Strategy for 2025/26 as per section 2.6;

Annual Treasury Investment Strategy as per section 2.7 including counterparties
and treasury limits

6. Treasury Management Prudential Indicators at section 2.8

oA

Page 10



Audit Committee 14 January 2026

Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2026/27 Including the Borrowing Strategy, Annual
Investment Strategy and Prudential Indicators

1.

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

15

151

Background

Treasury management is the management of the Council's cash flows, borrowing and
investments, and the associated risks. Oldham Council has borrowed and invested substantial
sums of money and is therefore exposed to financial risks including the loss of invested funds
and the revenue effect of changing interest rates. The successful identification, monitoring,
and control of financial risk are therefore central to the Council's prudent financial
management.

Treasury risk management at the Council is conducted within the framework of the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services:
Code of Practice 2021 Edition (the CIPFA Code), which requires the Council to approve a
treasury management strategy before the start of each financial year. This report fulfils the
Council’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 2003 to have regard to the CIPFA
Code.

Treasury management is defined as:
“The management of the local Council’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its banking,
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated

with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.”

Source: The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Treasury
Management in the Public Service’s Code of Practice.

Investments held for service purposes or for commercial profit, although affect investment

balances they are not treasury management investments and are therefore not considered in
this report.

Treasury Management Strateqy for 2026/27

The strategy for 2026/27 covers the below areas:

Treasury management issues:

Economic Background & Interest Rate Forecasts

The current and forecast balance sheet position;

The Liability Benchmark;

The Borrowing Strategy;

The policy on borrowing in advance of need;

Debt rescheduling;

The Treasury Investment Strategy;

Environmental Social & Governance Consideration (ESG)
Approved Counterparties;

Treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council;
Treasury Related Matters.

Page 11



1.6

16.1

1.6.2

1.7
1.7.1

1.7.2

1.7.3

1.7.4

2.1

211

21.2

Training

The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer (in Oldham the Director of Finance) to
ensure that Members with responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training
to enable them to discharge their duties. This especially applies to Members responsible for
scrutiny.

The training needs of treasury management officers are periodically reviewed. The team is
staffed by professionally qualified accountants with extensive Local Government finance
experience. Team members attend all relevant training courses, workshops and events to
ensure that their knowledge and skills are up to date and the Council is in a position to
address all new technical developments. During 2025/26 these have all been held remotely
via zoom or another online platform and in person. All staff follow a Continuous Professional
Development (CPD) Plan as part of their individual accountancy body accreditation. The
overall responsibility for capital and treasury activities lies with the Council’'s Section 151
Officer (Director of Finance) who, in accordance with statute, is professionally qualified and
is suitably experienced to hold the post.

Treasury Management Consultants

The Council uses Arlingclose as its external treasury management advisors.

The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions remains with
the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon the
services of external service providers. All decisions will be undertaken with regard to all
available information, including, but not solely, our treasury advisers.

It is also recognised that there is value in employing external providers of treasury management
services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. The Council will ensure that
the terms of their appointment and the methods by which their value will be assessed are properly
agreed and documented, and subjected to regular review.

When looking at a commercial element within a particular capital scheme that has a main
focus on public services, housing, regeneration, preventative objectives or treasury
management investments, the Council may require specialist advice that Arlingclose may not
provide. As part of the evaluation process and if required, appropriate external advice will be
sought, and an extensive due diligence exercise will be undertaken.

External Context

Economic Background

The most significant impact on the UK from the government’s Autumn Budget will influence
the Authority’s treasury management strategy for 2026/27. Other influences will include lower
short-term interest rates alongside higher medium- and longer-term rates, slower economic
growth, together with ongoing uncertainties around the global economy, stock market
sentiment, and ongoing geopolitical issues

The Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) cut Bank Rate to 3.75% in

December 2025, as expected. The vote to cut was 5-4, with the minority instead favouring
holding rates at 4.0%. Those members wanting a cut judged that disinflation was established

Page 12



2.13

214

2.15

2.1.6

2.1.7

2.2

221

222

while those preferring to hold Bank Rate argued that inflation risks remained sufficiently
material to leave rates untouched at this stage.

Figures from the Office for National Statistics showed that the UK economy expanded by 0.1%
in the third quarter of the calendar year, this was unrevised from the initial estimate. The most
recent Monetary Policy Report projected modest economic growth, with Gross Domestic
Product (GDP) expected to rise by 0.2% in the final calendar quarter of 2025. Annual growth
is forecast to ease from 1.4% before improving again later, reflecting the delayed effects of
lower interest rates, looser monetary conditions, stronger global activity, and higher consumer
spending. The view of modest economic growth going forward was echoed by the Office for
Budget Responsibility in its Economic and fiscal outlook published in line with the Autumn
Statement which revised down its estimate of annual real GDP to around 1.5% on average
between 2025 and 2030.

Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflation was 3.2% in November 2025, down from 3.6% in the
previous month and below the 3.5% expected. Core CPI eased to 3.2% from 3.4%, contrary
to forecasts of remaining at 3.6%. Looking forward, the MPC continues to expect inflation to
fall, to around 3% in calendar Q1 2026, before steadily returning to the 2% target by late 2026
or early 2027.

The labour market continues to ease with rising unemployment, falling vacancies and flat
inactivity. In the three months to October 2025, the unemployment rate increased to 5.1%,
higher than the level previously expected by the BoE, while the employment rate slipped to
74.9%. Pay growth for the same period eased modestly, with total earnings (including
bonuses) growth at 4.7% and while regular pay was 4.6%.

The US Federal Reserve also continued to cut rates, including reducing the target range for
the Federal Funds Rate by 0.25% at its December 2025 meeting, to 3.50%-3.75%, in line with
expectations. The minutes of the meeting noted that most Fed policymakers judged that further
rate cuts would be likely in 2026 if inflation continues to ease, however they were still divided
in their assessment of the risks between inflation and unemployment.

The European Central Bank (ECB) kept its key interest rates unchanged in December for a
fourth consecutive meeting, maintaining the deposit rate at 2.0% and the main refinancing rate
at 2.15%. The ECB reiterated that future policy decisions will remain data-dependent, noting
that inflation is close to its 2% target and that the euro area economy continues to expand
despite a challenging global environment, including heightened geopolitical risks and trade
tensions.

Credit Outlook

Credit Default Swap (CDS) prices, which spiked in April 2025 following President Trump’s
‘Liberation Day’ tariff announcements, have since trended lower, returning to levels broadly
consistent with their 2024 averages. Although CDS prices rose modestly in October, the overall
credit outlook remains stable, and credit conditions are expected to remain close to the range
seen over the past two years.

While lower interest rates may weigh on banks’ profitability, strong capital positions, easing
inflation, steady economic growth, low unemployment, and reduced borrowing costs for
households and businesses all support a favourable outlook for the creditworthiness of
institutions on (the authority’s treasury management advisor) Arlingclose’s counterparty list.
Arlingclose’s advice on approved counterparties and recommended investment durations is
kept under continuous review and will continue to reflect prevailing economic and credit
conditions.

Page 13



2.3

23.1

2.3.2

2.3.3

234

24

241

Interest rate forecast

The Council’s treasury management advisors Arlingclose, forecast that the Bank of England’s
(BoE) Monetary Policy Committee will continue to reduce Bank Rates through 2025 and 2026,
reaching around 3.25%. This forecast reflects amendments made following the Autumn Budget
and an assessment of the fiscal measures and their market implications, and following the BoE
MPC meeting held on 18 December 2025.

Arlingclose expects long-term gilt yields, and therefore interest rates payable on long-term
borrowing, to remain broadly stable on average, though with continued volatility, and to end
the forecast period marginally lower than current levels. Yields are likely to stay higher than in
the pre-quantitative tightening era, reflecting ongoing balance sheet reduction and elevated
bond issuance. Short-term fluctuations are expected to persist in response to economic data
releases and geopolitical developments.

A more detailed economic and interest rate forecast provided by Arlingclose is in Appendix A.

For the purpose of setting the budget, it has been assumed that new treasury investments will
be made at an average ratelyield of 3.50%, and that new long-term loans will be borrowed at
an average rate of 4.70%.

Local Context

On 31 December 2025, the Council held circa £252m of borrowing and £57.735m of treasury
investments (Money Market Funds (MMF’s) and Barclays overnight invest, Fixed Interest
Bearing Current Accounts (FIBCA) of £44.120m and CCLA Pooled Fund £13.615m). This is
set out in further detail at Appendix 2. Forecast changes in these sums are shown in the
balance sheet analysis in table 1 below.

Table 1: Balance sheet summary and forecast

Capital financing 550,839 | 569,182 | 584,263 | 579,671 | 567,762
requirement

Less: Otherdebt | ;)3 519) | (217,038) | (210,011) | (202,524) | (194,576)
liabilities

Loans CFR 336,027 | 352,144 | 374,253 | 377,146 | 373,186
Less: External

borrowing * (234,817) | (234,559) | (209,559) | (209,559) | (209,559)
Internal (over) 101,210 | 117,584 | 164,694 | 167,587 | 163,627
borrowing

Less: Balance

cheet roSoUrces (148,795) | (124,936) | (129,936) | (134,936) | (134,936)
Treasury

Kl‘veStme”tS.(or 47,585) | (7.352)| 34,758 | 32,651 28,601
ew borrowing

reguirement)

* leases and PFI liabilities that form part of the Council’s total debt
** shows only loans to which the Council is committed and excludes optional refinancing

Page 14



24.2

243

24.4

2.5

251

2.5.2

2.5.3

254

The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR), while balance sheet resources are the underlying sums available for
investment. The Council’s current strategy is to maintain borrowing and investments below
their underlying levels, also known as internal borrowing.

The Council has an increasing CFR up to 2027/28 due to the capital programme and is
forecasting and then decreasing as a result of the diminishing capital programme, increasing
MRP and increase in balance sheet resources. The consequence of this is that the Council
moves from a position whereby it will have a need to borrow from 26/27 circa £35m reducing
to £29m by 28/29. The Council will be required to borrow up to £34.8m in 2026/27 reducing to
£32.6m and £28.7m by the end of the forecast period.

CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities recommends that the
Council’s total debt should be lower than its highest forecast CFR over the next three years.
Table 1 shows that the Council expects to comply with this recommendation during 2026/27.

Liability Benchmark

To compare the Council’'s actual borrowing against an alternative strategy, a liability
benchmark has been calculated showing the lowest risk level of borrowing. This assumes the
same forecasts as table 1 above, but that cash and investment balances are kept to a minimum
level of £20m at each year-end to maintain sufficient liquidity but minimise credit risk.

The liability benchmark is an important tool to help establish whether the Council is likely to be
a long-term borrower or long-term investor in the future, and so shape its strategic focus and
decision making.

The liability benchmark itself represents an estimate of the cumulative amount of external

borrowing the Council must hold to fund its current capital and revenue plans while keeping
treasury investments at the minimum level required to manage day-to-day cash flow.

Table 2: Prudential Indicator: Liability benchmark

Loans CFR 336,027 352,144 374,253 377,146 373,186
Less: Balance sheet

[ESOUICES (148,795) | (124,936) | (129,936) | (134,936) | (134,936)
Net loans requirement 187,232 227,208 244,317 242,210 238,250
Plus: Liquidity allowance 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Liability benchmark 207,232 247,208 264,317 262,210 258,250

Following on from the medium-term forecasts in table 2 above, the long-term liability
benchmark assumes capital expenditure funded by borrowing of £38.4m over the life of period
2026/27 to 2027/28 and 2028/29, minimum revenue provision on new capital expenditure
based on 5, 7, 10, 15, 25, 40 and 50 year asset lives.

Page 15



2.5.5 The Liability Benchmark is required to be reported for a minimum period of 10 years, however
CIPFA recommend that the liability benchmark is for a much longer period and covers the
existing debt portfolio. This is shown in the two charts below together with the maturity profile
of the Council’s existing borrowing over a 10-year period and 50-year period: Income,
Expenditure and reserves are all increasing at 2.5% per year. This is shown in the chart below
together with the maturity profiles of the Authority’s existing borrowing:

10 Year Liability Benchmark Projection

Liability Benchmark- Oldham MBC ' arlingclose

fm

450

400

350

300

250

200

150

100

50

0
2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034

mmmm Fixed rate loans  mwwm LOBO loans Loans CFR == Liability benchmark = = =Net loans requirement

50 Year Liability Benchmark Period

Liability Benchmark- Oldham MBC ( arlingc ose

450

400

N
FNC

300

250

200

150

100

50

0
2024 2027 2030 2033 2036 2039 2042 2045 2048 2051 2054 2057 2060 2063 2066 2069 2072

mmmm Fixed rate loans  mwwwm LOBO loans Loans CFR

Liability benchmark = = = Net loans requirement

Page 16



2.5.6

2.5.7

2.5.8

2.6

2.6.1

2.6.2

2.6.3

26.4

The graphs above show the liability benchmark (the middle line red line) rising from a point
below the shaded area that represents existing loans for the period to March 2026. When the
middle line (liability benchmark) is above the shaded grey area this indicates a need for the
Council to raise new long-term loans. The Liability Benchmark is effectively the Net Borrowing
Requirement of a Local Council plus a liquidity allowance. In its simplest form, it is calculated
by deducting the amount of investable resources available on the balance sheet (reserves and
cash flow balances) from the amount of outstanding external debt and then adding the
minimum level of investments required to manage day-to-day cash flow.

The greater the gap between the shaded area and the middle line (liability benchmark) the
greater the amount of new long-term loans required to fund the capital programme. It can be
seen from the graph above that new loans are required up until the period 2039/40, with the
maximum amount of new loans required peaking in 2028/29 and then gradually reduce up until
2039/40. This tool aids decision making on duration of new loans required. It should be noted
that this analysis is based on the current 5-year capital programme: if the capital programme
was extended, then the borrowing duration will almost certainly increase.

Due to Oldham Council’s existing loan portfolio being long dated maturity dates, the above
chart shows that any new loans taken should be shorter dated than existing loans and
staggered over the period from 2026/27 to 2039/40. The timing of any new borrowing has been
factored into other performance indicators.

Borrowing Strateqy

The Council currently holds £222.4m of loans, an increase of £12.84m during 2025/26. In
addition, temporary short-term borrowing of £30m (compared with £25m in 2024/25) has been
undertaken for cash flow purposes over the year, whilst we review longer term borrowing
options. These loans represent borrowings undertaken as part of its strategy for funding
previous years’ capital programmes. The balance sheet forecast in table 1 shows, - based on
the current capital programme - that the Council is forecast to borrow up to £34.7m in 2026/27,
reducing by £2.1m in 2027/28 and a further £4m bringing total new borrowing in the 4 year
period to circa £28.6m if the capital programme progresses as forecast. The Council may also
borrow additional sums to pre-fund future years’ requirements, providing this does not exceed
the authorised limit for borrowing of £390m in 2026/27 (see 2.8.13 below) and if it is
advantageous to do so in terms of reduced borrowing costs associated with borrowing early.
A full appraisal will be carried out before any borrowing is undertaken.

The Council’'s chief objective when borrowing money is to strike an appropriately low risk
balance between securing low interest costs and achieving certainty of those costs over the
period for which funds are required. The flexibility to renegotiate loans should the Council’s
long-term plans change is a secondary objective.

The Council’s borrowing strategy continues to address the key issue of affordability without
compromising the longer-term stability of the debt portfolio. Short-term interest rates have
fallen over the past year, and are expected to fall a little further, and it is therefore likely to be
more cost effective over the medium term to either use internal resources, or to borrow short
term loans instead. The risks of this approach will be managed by keeping the Authority’s
interest rate exposure within the limit set in the treasure management prudential indicators as
detailed in section 2.8.

By doing so, the Council is able to reduce net borrowing costs (despite foregone investment

income) and reduce overall treasury risk. The benefits of short-term borrowing will be
monitored regularly against the potential for incurring additional costs by deferring borrowing

Page 17



2.6.5

2.6.6

2.6.7

2.6.8

2.6.9

2.6.10

2.6.11

into future years when long-term borrowing rates are forecast to rise modestly. Arlingclose,
Oldham Council’'s Treasury Management Advisor, will assist with this ‘cost of carry’ and
breakeven analysis. Its output may determine whether the Council borrows additional sums at
long-term fixed rates in 2026/27 with a view to keeping future interest costs low, even if this
causes additional cost in the short-term.

The Council has previously raised long-term borrowing from the PWLB and banks but will
consider long-term loans from other sources including pension funds and other local
authorities. It will also investigate the possibility of issuing bonds and similar instruments, in
order to lower interest costs and reduce over-reliance on one source of funding in line with the
CIPFA Code.

PWLB loans are no longer available to local authorities planning to buy investment assets
primarily for investment yield purposes; the Council intends to avoid this activity in order to
retain its access to PWLB loans.

The Council may also arrange forward starting loans, where the interest rate is fixed in
advance, but the cash is received in later years. This would enable certainty of cost to be
achieved without suffering a cost of carry in the intervening period.

In addition, the Council may borrow short-term loans to cover unplanned cash flow shortages.

The approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing are:

. HM Treasury’s PWLB lending facility (formerly the Public Works Loan Board)

. National Wealth Fund Ltd (formerly UK Infrastructure Bank Ltd)

. any institution approved for investments (see below)

. any other bank or building society or insurance company authorised to operate in
the UK

. any other UK public sector body

. UK public and private sector pension funds (except Greater Manchester Pension
Fund)

. capital market bond investors

. retail investor via a regulated peer to peer platform

. special purpose companies created to enable local Council bond issues

Capital finance may be raised by the following methods that are not borrowing, but may be
classed as other debt liabilities.

. leasing

. hire purchase

. Private Finance Initiative (PFI)
. sale and leaseback

Oldham Council currently holds £223.812m of PFI debt over 7 schemes and £0.765m of
finance leases.

The UK Municipal Bonds Agency plc was established in 2014 by the Local Government
Association as an alternative to the PWLB. It issues bonds on the capital markets and lends
the proceeds to local authorities. This is a more complicated source of finance than the PWLB
for two reasons: borrowing authorities will be required to provide bond investors with a
guarantee to refund their investment in the event that the agency is unable to for any reason;

10

Page 18



2.6.12

2.6.13

2.6.14

2.6.15

2.7

271

2.7.2

2.7.3

274

275

and there will be a lead time of several months between committing to borrow and knowing the
interest rate payable. Any decision to borrow from the Agency will therefore be the subject of
a separate report to full Council.

The Council holds £75.5m of LOBO (Lender’'s Option Borrower’s Option) loans where the
lender has the option to propose an increase in the interest rate at set dates, following which
the Council has the option to either accept the new rate or to repay the loan at no additional
cost. £34m of these LOBOs have options during 2026/27, and with long term interest rates
having risen in recent years, lenders may seek to exercise their options. If they do, the Council
will look to take the option to repay LOBO loans to reduce refinancing risk in later years. No
further borrowing via LOBO loans is proposed for 2026/27.

Short-term and variable rate loans leave the Council exposed to the risk of short-term interest
rate rises and are therefore subject to the interest rate exposure limits in the treasury
management indicators below. Financial derivatives may be used to manage this interest rate
risk (see section below).

Debt rescheduling

The PWLB allows authorities to repay loans before maturity and either pay a premium or
receive a discount according to a set formula based on current interest rates. Other lenders
may also be prepared to negotiate premature redemption terms. The Council may take
advantage of this and replace some loans with new loans, or repay loans without replacement,
where this is expected to lead to an overall cost saving or a reduction in risk.

The recent rise in interest rates means that more favourable debt rescheduling opportunities
should arise than in previous years.

Treasury Investment Strategy

The Council holds invested funds, representing income received in advance of expenditure
plus balances and reserves held. In the past 12 months, the Council’s treasury investment
balance has ranged between £20.7million and £75 million. This has reduced since previous
years as was expected as reserves were utilised and capital expenditure has been incurred.
Similar levels are expected to be maintained in the forthcoming year.

The CIPFA Code requires the Council to invest its treasury funds prudently, and to have regard
to the security and liquidity of its investments before seeking the highest rate of return, or yield.
This is referred to as the SLY mode.

The Council’s objective when investing money is to strike an appropriate balance between risk
and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and the risk of receiving
unsuitably low investment income. Where balances are expected to be invested for more than
one year, the Council will aim to achieve atotal return that is equal or higher than the prevailing
rate of inflation, in order to maintain the spending power of the sum invested.

The Council aims to be a responsible investor and will consider environmental, social and
governance (ESG) issues when investing.

As demonstrated by the liability benchmark above, the Council expects to be a long-term
borrower and new treasury investments will therefore be made primarily to manage day-to-day

cash flows using short-term low risk instruments. The existing portfolio of strategic pooled
funds will be maintained to diversify risk into different sectors and boost investment income.

11

Page 19



2.7.6

2.7.7

2.7.8

2.7.9

The CIPFA Code does not permit local authorities to both borrow and invest long-term for cash
flow management. But the Council may make long-term investments for treasury risk
management purposes, including to manage interest rate risk by investing sums borrowed in
advance for the capital programme for up to three years; to manage inflation risk by investing
usable reserves in instruments whose value rises with inflation; and to manage price risk by
adding diversification to the strategic pooled fund portfolio.
Environmental, social and governance (ESG) considerations are increasingly a factor in global
investors’ decision making, but the framework for evaluating investment opportunities is still
developing and therefore the Council’'s ESG policy does not currently include ESG scoring or
other real-time ESG criteria at an individual investment level. When investing in banks and
funds, the Council will prioritise banks that are signatories to the UN Principles for Responsible
Banking and funds operated by managers that are signatories to the UN Principles for
Responsible Investment, the Net Zero Asset Managers Alliance and/or the UK Stewardship
Code
Under the IFRS 9 standard, the accounting for certain investments depends on the Council’s
“business model” for managing them. The Council aims to achieve value from its treasury
investments by a business model of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore, where
other criteria are also met, these investments will continue to be accounted for at amortised
cost.
Approved counterparties
The Council may invest its surplus funds with any of the counterparty types in table 3 below,
subject to the limits shown.
Table 3: Treasury investment counterparties and limits
The UK Government 50 years Unlimited n/a
Local authorities & other £10m per local council /fire I
- 3 years . . Unlimited
government entities /police authority
Secured investments . 25 years £10m Unlimited
government collateral;
Secured investments — other 10 years £10m Unlimited
collateral
£5m with the exception of the
Council’s banking provider -
*
Banks (unsecured) 13 months (currently Barclays Bank) Unlimited
£10m
Building societies (unsecured) * | 13 months £5m
Registered providers
(unsecured) * 3 years £5m
Money market funds * n/a £15m per individual fund Unlimited
Strategic pooled funds n/a £15m per individual fund £20m
Other investments * 3 years £10m £10m
*This table must be read in conjunction with the notes below
12

Page 20



Minimum credit rating Treasury investments in the sectors marked with an asterisk will
only be made with entities whose lowest published long-term credit rating is no lower than
A-. Where available, the credit rating relevant to the specific investment or class of
investment is used, otherwise the counterparty credit rating is used. However, investment
decisions are never made solely based on credit ratings, and all other relevant factors
including external advice will be taken into account.

For entities without published credit ratings, investments may be made either (a) where
external advice indicates the entity to be of similar credit quality; or (b) to a maximum of £5
million per counterparty as part of a diversified pool e.g. via a peer-to-peer platform.

Time Limits: These start on the earlier of date that the Authority is committed to make the
investment and the date that cash is transferred to the counterparty.

UK Government: Sterling-denominated investments with or explicitly guaranteed by the
UK Government, including the Debt Management Account Deposit Facility, treasury bills
and gilts. Investments with the UK Government are deemed to be zero credit risk due to
its ability to create additional currency and therefore may be made in unlimited amounts
for up to 50 years.

Local authorities and other government entities: Loans to, and bonds and bills issued
or guaranteed by, other national governments, regional and local authorities and
multilateral development banks. These investments are not subject to bail-in, and there is
generally a lower risk of insolvency, although they are not zero risk.

Secured investments: Investments secured on the borrower’s assets, which limits the
potential losses in the event of insolvency. The amount and quality of the security will be a
key factor in the investment decision. Covered bonds, secured deposits and reverse
repurchase agreements with banks and building societies are exempt from bail-in. Where
there is no investment specific credit rating, but the collateral upon which the investment
is secured has a credit rating, the higher of the collateral credit rating and the counterparty
credit rating will be used. The combined secured and unsecured investments with any one
counterparty will not exceed the cash limit for secured investments. A higher limit applies
for investments fully secured on UK or other government collateral.

Banks and building societies (unsecured): Accounts, deposits, certificates of deposit
and senior unsecured bonds with banks and building societies, other than multilateral
development banks. These investments are subject to the risk of credit loss via a bail-in
should the regulator determine that the bank is failing or likely to fail. See below for
arrangements relating to operational bank accounts.

Registered providers (unsecured): Loans to, and bonds issued or guaranteed by,
registered providers of social housing or registered social landlords, formerly known as
housing associations. These bodies are regulated by the Regulator of Social Housing (in
England), the Scottish Housing Regulator, the Welsh Government and the Department for
Communities (in Northern lIreland). As providers of public services, they retain the
likelihood of receiving government support if needed.

Money market funds: Pooled funds that offer same-day or short notice liquidity and very
low or no price volatility by investing in short-term money markets. They have the
advantage over bank accounts of providing wide diversification of investment risks,
coupled with the services of a professional fund manager in return for a small fee. Although
no sector limit applies to money market funds, the Council will take care to diversify its
liquid investments over a variety of providers to ensure access to cash at all times.

13

Page 21



2.7.10

2.7.11

2.7.12

2.7.13

2.7.14

e Strategic pooled funds: Bond, equity and property funds, including exchange traded
funds, that offer enhanced returns over the longer term but are more volatile in the short
term. These allow the Council to diversify into asset classes other than cash without the
need to own and manage the underlying investments. Because these funds have no
defined maturity date but can be either withdrawn after a notice period or sold on an
exchange, their performance and continued suitability in meeting the Council’s investment
objectives will be monitored regularly.

e Other investments: This category covers treasury investments not listed above, for
example unsecured corporate bonds and unsecured loans to companies and universities.
Non-bank companies cannot be bailed-in but can become insolvent placing the Council’s
investment at risk.

Risk assessment and credit ratings

Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by the Council’s treasury advisers, who will notify
changes in ratings as they occur. The credit rating agencies in current use are listed in the
Treasury Management Practices document. Where an entity has its credit rating downgraded
so that it fails to meet the approved investment criteria then:

e no new investments will be made,

e any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be, and

e full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing investments with
the affected counterparty.

Where a credit rating agency announces that a credit rating is on review for possible
downgrade (also known as “negative watch”) so that it may fall below the approved rating
criteria, then only investments that can be withdrawn on the next working day will be made
with that organisation until the outcome of the review is announced. This policy will not apply
to negative outlooks, which indicate a long-term direction of travel rather than an imminent
change of rating.

The Council understands that credit ratings are good, but not perfect, predictors of investment
default. Full regard will therefore be given to other available information on the credit quality of
the organisations in which it invests, including credit default swap prices, financial statements,
information on potential government support, reports in the quality financial press and analysis
and advice from the Council’s treasury management adviser. No investments will be made
with an organisation if there are substantive doubts about its credit quality, even though it may
otherwise meet the above criteria.

The Council is aware that investment with certain counterparties, while considered secure from
a purely financial perspective, may leave it open to criticism, valid or otherwise, that may affect
its public reputation, and this risk will therefore be taken into account when making investment
decisions.

When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of all organisations,
as happened in 2008, 2020 and 2022, this is not generally reflected in credit ratings, but can
be seen in other market measures. In these circumstances, the Council will restrict its
investments to those organisations of higher credit quality and reduce the maximum duration
of its investments to maintain the required level of security. The extent of these restrictions will
be in line with prevailing financial market conditions. If these restrictions mean that insufficient
commercial organisations of high credit quality are available to invest the Council’'s cash
balances, then the surplus will be deposited with the UK Government, or with other local
authorities. This will cause investment returns to fall but will protect the principal sum invested.

14

Page 22



2.7.15

2.7.16

2.7.17

2.7.18

2.8

28.1

2.8.2

Investment limits

The Council’s revenue reserves are forecast to be £72.225m on 31 March 2026 and £76.595m
on 31 March 2027. In order that no more than 25% of available reserves will be put at risk in
the case of a single default, the maximum that will be lent to any one organisation (other than
the UK Government) will be £15 million. A group of entities under the same ownership will be
treated as a single organisation for limit purposes. This limit will not be deemed to have been
breached if the addition of interest or a re-invested dividend briefly takes the balance over
£15million.

Limits are also placed on fund managers, investments in brokers’ hominee accounts and
foreign countries as below. Investments in pooled funds and multilateral development banks
do not count against the limit for any single foreign country, since the risk is diversified over
many countries.

Table 4: Additional investment limits

Any group of pooled funds under the same £15m per
management manager
Negotiable instruments held in a broker’'s £10m per
nominee account broker

. . £5m per
Foreign countries country

Liquidity management:

The Council produces a cash flow forecast at the start of the year to determine the maximum
period for which funds may prudently be invested, or to identify times and amounts which may
need to be borrowed. This cash flow forecast is updated throughout the year. The forecast is
compiled on a prudent basis to minimise the risk of the Council being forced to borrow on
unfavourable terms to meet its financial commitments. Limits on long-term investments are set
by reference to the Council’s medium-term financial plan and cash flow forecast.

The Council will spread its liquid cash over at least two providers (e.g. bank accounts and
money market funds and DMO) to ensure that access to cash is maintained in the event of
operational difficulties at any one provider.

Treasury Management Prudential Indicators

The Council has adopted a number of voluntary measures to manage its exposures to treasury
management risks using the indicators detailed below.

Security

The Council has adopted the below measure of its exposure to credit risk by monitoring the
value-weighted average credit rating of its investment portfolio. Arlingclose calculate and
report this as part of the Investment Benchmarking service. Unrated investments are assigned
a score based on their perceived risk.

Portfolio average credit rating A

15

Page 23



2.8.3

2.8.4

285

2.8.6

2.8.7

Liquidity

The Council has an indicator for to measure its exposure to liquidity risk by monitoring the
amount of cash available to meet unexpected payments within a rolling three-month period,
without additional borrowing.

Total cash available within 3 months £20m

Interest rate exposures

This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to interest rate risk (2026/27). The upper
limits on the one-year revenue impact of a 1% rise or fall in interest rates will be:

Upper limit on one-year revenue impact of a 1%

S 316
rise in interest rates

Upper limit on one-year revenue impact of a 1% (316)

fall in interest rates

The impact of a change in interest rates is calculated on the assumption that maturing loans
and investments will be replaced at new market rates. For the purpose of this indicator this
has been based on LOBO’s with option dates in 2026/27 and new borrowing associated with
the capital programme.

Maturity structure of borrowing

This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and lower
limits on the maturity structure of borrowing will be:

Under 12 months 0% 35%
12 months and within 24 months 0% 35%
24 months and within 5 years 0% 35%
5 years and within 10 years 0% 35%
10 years and within 20 years 0% 50%
20 years and within 30 years 0% 50%
30 years and within 40 years 0% 50%
40 years and within 50 years 0% 50%
50 years and within 60 years 0% 50%

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of borrowing is the
earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment. LOBO loans have been treated
using the option date as there is a potential that they may be called, and repayment will be
required.

16

Page 24



2.8.8

2.8.9

2.8.10

2.8.11

2.8.12

2.8.13

Long-term treasury management investments

The purpose of this indicator is to control the Council’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses
by seeking early repayment of its investments. The prudential limits on the long-term treasury
management investments will be:

Limit on principal invested beyond £15m £15m £15m £15m

year end

Long-term investments with no fixed maturity date include strategic pooled funds and real
estate investment trusts but exclude money market funds and bank accounts with no fixed
maturity date as these are considered short-term.

The Council is required to determine its Operational Boundary and Authorised Limit for external
debt for the next three financial years.

Operational Boundary

The forecast Operational Boundary for 2026/27 together with the proposed operational
boundaries for 2027/28 to 2029/30 are set out in the table below. The boundary reflects the
maximum anticipated level of external debt which is not expected to be exceeded. In most
cases, this would be a similar figure to the CFR, but may be lower or higher depending on
levels of actual debt and the ability to fund under-borrowing by other cash resources. This
boundary will be used as a management tool for ongoing monitoring of external debt and may
be breached temporarily due to unusual cash flow movements. However, a sustained or
regular trend above the Operational Boundary should trigger a review of both the Operational
Boundary and the Authorised Limit.

Borrowing 365,000 375,000 | 395,000 | 400,000
Other long term liabilities 225,000 220,000 | 210,000 | 195,000
Total 590,000 595,000 | 605,000 | 595,000

Authorised Limit

A further key Prudential Indicator, the Authorised Limit controls the maximum level of
borrowing. This represents a limit beyond which external debt is prohibited, and this limit may
only be determined by full Council. It reflects the level of external debt which, while not
desirable, is affordable in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term. This is the
statutory limit determined under Section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003. The
Government retains an option to control either the total of all Councils’ plans, or those of a
specific Council, although this power has not yet been exercised.

Members are asked to consider the proposed Operational Boundary for each financial year
from 2025/26 to 2028/29 as set out in the table above and Authorised Limit as set out in table
below:

17

Page 25




2.9

291

2.9.2

293

294

2.9.5

2.9.6

29.7

2.9.8

Borrowing 380,000 390,000 | 410,000 | 415,000
Other long term liabilities 228,500 223,500 | 213,500 | 208,000

Total 608,500 613,500 | 623,500 | 623,000

Related Matters

The CIPFA Code requires the Council to include the following in its treasury management
strategy regarding financial derivatives.

Local authorities have previously made use of financial derivatives embedded into loans and
investments both to reduce interest rate risk (e.g. interest rate collars and forward deals) and
to reduce costs or increase income at the expense of greater risk (e.g. LOBO loans and
callable deposits). The general power of competence in section 1 of the Localism Act 2011
removes much of the uncertainty over local authorities’ use of standalone financial derivatives
(i.e. those that are not embedded into a loan or investment).

The Council will only use standalone financial derivatives (such as swaps, forwards, futures
and options) where they can be clearly demonstrated to reduce the overall level of the financial
risks that the Council is exposed to. Additional risks presented, such as credit exposure to
derivative counterparties, will be taken into account when determining the overall level of risk.
Embedded derivatives, including those present in pooled funds and forward starting
transactions, will not be subject to this policy, although the risks they present will be managed
in line with the overall treasury risk management strategy.

Financial derivative transactions may be arranged with any organisation that meets the
approved investment criteria, assessed using the appropriate credit rating for derivative
exposures. An allowance for credit risk calculated using the methodology in the Treasury
Management Practices document will count against the counterparty credit limit and the
relevant foreign country limit.

In line with the CIPFA Code, the Council will seek external advice and will consider that advice
before entering into financial derivatives to ensure that it fully understands the implications.

Housing Revenue Account

On 1st April 2012, the HRA became self-financing. This meant for Oldham Council that all
loans that formed part of the HRA capital financing requirement (CFR) were subsequently paid
off by Government due to the Council notionally splitting each of its existing long-term loans
into General Fund and HRA pools.

Any new long-term loans borrowed after this date will be assigned in their entirety to one pool
or the other. Interest payable and other costs/income arising from long-term loans (e.g.
premiums and discounts on early redemption) will be charged/ credited to the respective
revenue account. Differences between the value of the HRA loans pool and the HRA’s
underlying need to borrow (adjusted for HRA balance sheet resources available for
investment) will result in a notional cash balance which may be positive or negative.

This balance will be measured annually, and interest transferred between the General Fund
and HRA at an appropriate interest rate with respect to the balances held by the HRA.

18

Page 26



2.9.9

3.1

4.1

5.1

6.1

7.1

8.1

9.1

10

10.1

11

111

Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (MIFID)

The Council has opted up to professional client status with its providers of financial services,
including advisers, banks, brokers and money market funds allowing it access to a greater
range of services but without the greater regulatory protections afforded to individuals and
small companies. Given the size and range of the Council’s treasury management activities,
the Director of Finance believes this to be the most appropriate status.

Options/Alternatives

In order to comply with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management, Cabinet has no
option other than to consider and commend the content of the report to Council. Therefore, no
options/alternatives have been presented.

Preferred Option

The preferred option is that the contents of this report are considered, noted commended for
approval by Cabinet and Council by Audit Committee.

Consultation

There has been consultation with Arlingclose, the Council’s Treasury Management Advisors.
The Audit Committee will be presented the Treasury Management Strategy for them to review
and provide comment for consideration and approval to Cabinet and Full Council.

Financial Implications

Detailed within the body of the report

Legal Services Comments

There are no legal implications.

Procurement Implications

N/A

Equality Impact, including implications for Children and Young People

N/A

Key Decision

Yes

Key Decision Reference

FCR 16-25

19

Page 27



12

12.1

13

Background Papers

Background Papers 12.1 [A copy of the list of background papers to the report must be
included in the report and at least one copy of each of the document included in that list must
be available for inspection by the public at the office of the Council and on the local authority’s
website, i.e. included on the Cabinet Agenda / delegated item.] The following is a list of
background papers on which this report is based in accordance with the requirements of
Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 1972. It does not include documents which would
disclose exempt or confidential information as defined by the Act :

File Ref: Background papers are provided in Appendices 1 - 2
Officer Name: Paula Buckley Finance Manager

Contact Email: paula.buckley@oldham.gov.uk

Appendices

Appendix 1 Economic and Interest Rate Forecast

Appendix 2 Existing Investment and Debt Portfolio

20

Page 28



Appendix 1- Arlingclose Economic & Interest Rate Forecast — December 2025

Underlying assumptions:

The Bank of England duly delivered on expectations for a December rate cut, but, despite
softer economic data over the past two weeks, the minutes highlighted increased caution
surrounding both the inflation outlook and the speed of future easing. With a close vote of
5-4 in favour of a rate reduction, this suggests that the bar for further monetary easing
may be higher than previously thought despite the possibility of the CPI rate falling to
target in 2026.

Budget policies and base effects will mechanically reduce the CPI rate in 2026, on top of
the downward pressure arising from soft economic growth and the looser labour market.
However, many policymakers appear concerned that household and business inflation
and pricing expectations are proving sticky following recent bouts of high price and wage
growth, which may allow underlying inflationary pressure to remain elevated. While, the
Bank’s measure of household expectations ticked lower in December, it remains above
levels consistent with the 2% target at 3.5%.

While policymakers hold valid concerns, these appear somewhat out of line with current
conditions; CPI inflation fell to 3.2% in November, private sector wage growth continued to
ease amid the highest unemployment rate since the pandemic, and the economy
contracted in October after barely growing in Q3. Business surveys pointed to marginally
stronger activity and pricing intentions in December but also suggested that the pre-
Budget malaise was not temporary. These data are the latest in a trend suggesting
challenging economic conditions are feeding into price and wage setting.

Risks to the growth and inflation outlook lie to the downside, which may ultimately deliver
lower Bank Rate than our central case. However, the minutes suggest that the bar to
further rate cuts beyond 3.25% is higher and the near-term upside risks to our Bank Rate
forecast have increased. Having said that, we believe inflation expectations will naturally
decline alongside headline inflation rates.

Investors appear to have given the UK government some breathing space following the
Budget, with long-term yields continuing to trade at slightly lower levels than in late
summer/early autumn. Even so, sustained heavy borrowing across advanced economies,
the DMQO’s move towards issuing more short-dated gilts and lingering doubts about the
government’s fiscal plans will keep short to medium yields above the levels implied by
interest rate expectations alone.

Forecast:

In line with our long-held forecast, Bank Rate was cut to 3.75% in December.

Continuing disinflation, rising unemployment, softening wage growth and low confidence
suggests that monetary policy will continue to be loosened.

Arlingclose expects Bank Rate to be cut to 3.25% by middle of 2026. However, near-term
upside risks to the forecast have increased.

Medium and long-term gilt yields continue to incorporate premia for UK government
credibility, global uncertainty and significant issuance. These issues may not be resolved
quickly and we expect yields to remain higher

21

Page 29



Current Mar-26 Jun-26 Sep-26 Dec-26 Mar-27 Jun-27 Sep-27 Dec-27 Mar-28 Jun-28 Sep-28 Dec-28
Official Bank Rate
Upside risk 0.00{ 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50| 0.50] 0.50 0.50{ 0.50
Central Case 3.75| 3.50 3.25 3.25 3.25 3.25 3.25 3.25 3.25| 3.25| 3.25 3.25| 3.25
Downside risk 0.00{ 0.00 -0.25 -0.50 -0.50 -0.50, -0.50] -0.50 -0.50] -0.50f -0.50] -0.50{ -0.50
3-month money market rate
Upside risk 0.00{ 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50| 0.50] 0.50 0.50{ 0.50
Central Case 3.82| 3.55 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30] 3.30| 3.35 3.35| 3.35
Downside risk 0.00/ 0.00 -0.25 -0.50 -0.50 -0.50] -0.50] -0.50 -0.50] -0.50, -0.50| -0.50| -0.50
5yr gilt yield
Upside risk 0.00{ 0.40 0.45 0.50 0.55 0.60 0.65 0.70 0.70| 0.70; 0.70 0.70| 0.70
Central Case 3.96/ 3.85 3.80 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75 3.75| 3.75| 3.80 3.80, 3.80
Downside risk 0.00{ -0.50 -0.60 -0.70 -0.80 -0.85| -0.85] -0.85 -0.85| -0.85| -0.85] -0.85| -0.85
10yr gilt yield
Upside risk 0.00{ 0.40 0.45 0.50 0.55 0.60 0.65 0.70 0.70| 0.70; 0.70 0.70| 0.70
Central Case 4.52| 4.40 4.35 4.30 4.30 4.30 4.30 4.30 4.30| 4.30] 4.35 4.35| 4.35
Downside risk 0.00{ -0.50 -0.60 -0.70 -0.80 -0.85| -0.85] -0.85 -0.85| -0.85| -0.85] -0.85| -0.85
20yr gilt yield
Upside risk 0.00{ 0.40 0.45 0.50 0.55 0.60 0.65 0.70 0.70| 0.70] 0.70 0.70| 0.70
Central Case 5.16/ 5.00 4.95 4.90 4.90 4.90 4.90 4.90 4.90| 4.90, 4.95 4.95| 4.95
Downside risk 0.00] -0.50 -0.60 -0.70 -0.80 -0.85] -0.85| -0.85 -0.85| -0.85| -0.85] -0.85| -0.85
50yr gilt yield
Upside risk 0.00{ 0.40 0.45 0.50 0.55 0.60 0.65 0.70 0.70| 0.70; 0.70 0.70| 0.70
Central Case 4.74) 4.65 4.60 4.60 4.60 4.60 4.60 4.60 4.60| 4.60/ 4.65 4.65| 4.65
Downside risk 0.00{ -0.50 -0.60 -0.70 -0.80 -0.85| -0.85] -0.85 -0.85| -0.85| -0.85] -0.85| -0.85

PWLB Standard Rate = Gilt yield + 1.00%
PWLB Certainty Rate = Gilt yield + 0.80%
PWLB HRA Rate = Gilt yield + 0.40%
National Wealth Fund (NWF) Rate = Gilt yield + 0.40%

Page 30

22



Appendix 2 — Existing Investment Debt Portfolio

The Council’s current external borrowing, long term liabilities and investments are details in the
table below:

31/12/2025 31/12/2025
Average
Ac?ual Rate
Portfolio £'000 o
0

External borrowing:
Public Works Loan Board 106,627 4.07%
LOBO loans from banks 75,500 4.32%
Other Bank loans 40,000 4.03%
Other Loans 255 4.00%
Temporary Short Term 30,000 4.33%
Total external borrowing 252,382
Other long-term liabilities:
Private Finance Initiative 213,847 7.98%
Leases 3,164 5.10%
Transferred Debt 27 2.82%
Total other long-term liabilities 217,038
Total gross external debt 469,420
Treasury investments:
Local authorities 0
Money market funds 34,120 4.14%
Barclays investment FIBCA 10,000 3.15%
Strategic pooled funds - CCLA Property 13,615 4.62%
Total treasury investments 57,735
Net debt 411,685

Page 31

23



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

Oldham

Council
Report to Audit Committee

Q3 2025/26 Internal Audit and Counter Fraud
Progress Report

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Abdul Jabbar MBE, Deputy Leader and
Cabinet Member for Finance, Corporate Services & Sustainability

Officer Contact: John Miller — Head of Audit & Counter Fraud

Report Author: John Miller — Head of Audit & Counter Fraud

14 January 2026

Reason for Decision
The Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference state that:

4.4.2 The Audit Committee shall:

a) be responsible for oversight of the Council’s Internal Audit arrangements and will;
(i) review summary findings and the main issues arising from internal audit reports
and seek assurance that management action has been taken where necessary;

This report provides Members with a high-level progress report on the work of the Internal
Audit and Counter Fraud team for Q3 of the 2025/26 financial year. Which, alongside the
Head of Audit and Counter Fraud’s Annual Report and Opinion for the year 2025/26, assists
the Committee in discharging its responsibilities as set out in the Audit Committee’s Terms
of Reference, which form part of the Council’s Constitution.

Executive Summary
Audit and Counter Fraud Team activity during Q3 2025/26 included:

e An assurance review of Arts Council grant funding for works to Northmoor Library.

e Four further reports in connection with Miocare Supported Living establishments,
SEND Special School Placements, Home to School Transport and Oldham Total Care
(OTC) are also being finalised with the relevant services. The outcomes of these
reviews will be reported in due course.

Page 33



e Corporate Counter Fraud activities have identified £183,096 of fraud, errors and
overpayments in the year to date.
Recommendation

Members are requested to consider the 2025/26 Q3 Audit and Counter Fraud Progress
Report.

Page 34



Audit Committee 14 January 2026

2025/26 Q3 Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Progress Report

1.

11

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

Background

This report summarises the work of the Audit and Counter Fraud Team between 1 April 2025
and 31 December 2025.

The main content of the report is structured as follows:

e Section 2: 2025/26 Audit and Counter Fraud Service: Progress Update.
e Section 3: Corporate Counter Fraud.

2025/26 Audit and Counter Fraud Service: Progress Update
Priorities for the 2025/26 Audit and Counter Fraud Plan include:

o Fundamental Financial Systems (FFS) reviews to provide assurance in support of the
Authority’s Annual Financial Statements.

Audits which are considered high priority and included in the Annual Internal Audit Plan.
Counter Fraud work to prevent and detect fraud, theft and corruption.

Investigations of both internal and external fraud.

Support in connection with postal votes for local, regional, and parliamentary elections.

Progress against these priorities is summarised below:
2025/26 Fundamental Financial Systems (FFS) reports

Work on the 2025/26 FFS reviews has commenced. The outcomes of the 2025/26 FFS
reviews will be reported in due course.

Other work completed
One Grant Assurance review was completed in Q3 in connection with:
e Arts Council Grant - Northmoor Library

The outcomes of all finalised reports, and other work for the year to date, are shown at
Appendix 1.

Four further reports are in the process of finalisation with service departments in respect of:

Miocare Supported Living

Home to School Transport — Follow up
SEND Special School Placements
Oldham Total Care (OTC)

Work is also ongoing in respect of:

Let Estate — Follow up
Highways Maintenance
Waste Management
Fostering Service

The outcomes of these reviews will be reported in due course.

Page 35



24

2.5

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

51

6.1

Other Work Undertaken

The team has also supported both the Director of Finance and other colleagues within the
Finance Service, and in other service areas, with ad hoc requests for support and assistance
throughout the period as required.

The Head of Audit and Counter Fraud continues to support the Committee, with a number of
reports produced for review and consideration at this meeting.

Corporate Counter Fraud

The Corporate Counter Fraud Team continues to perform well. Appendix 2 sets out the key
outcomes from the work conducted.

Highlights include the identification of:

No. of Corporate Cases - Positive Results 21
No. of CTR cases amended as a result of an investigation 23
Corporate cases Fraud, Error & Overpayments £11,656.32
HB Fraud, Error &Overpayments from CTR investigations £6,069.80
CTR Fraud, Error & Overpayments identified £37,487.64
Total Financial Outcomes from Counter Fraud £55,213.76

The latest bi-annual National Fraud Initiative (NFI) commenced in Quarter 3 of 2024/25. The
Counter Fraud team co-ordinated the collation and submission of multiple datasets to the
Cabinet Office, carrying out all necessary data quality checks in preparation for nationwide
data matching.

Initial results from this NFI cycle are included in the outcomes reported at Appendix 2, with
early successes identified in the areas of Single Person Discounts and Blue Badge misuse.

Further outcomes from the exercise will be monitored and reported to Members through future
committee updates.

Options/Alternatives

The Audit Committee can either:

a) choose to accept and note the progress achieved and performance by the Audit and
Counter Fraud Team:; or,
b) decline to accept and note the progress achieved and performance by the Audit and

Counter Fraud Team and suggest an alternative approach.
Preferred Option

The preferred option is that the Audit Committee accepts and notes the progress achieved and
performance by the Audit and Counter Fraud Team.

Consultation

N/A.

Page 36



7 Financial Implications

7.1 N/A.

8 Legal Services Comments

8.1 N/A.

9 Co-operative Agenda

9.1 N/A.

10 Human Resources Comments
10.1  N/A.

11 Risk Assessments

11.1 The 2025/26 Audit and Counter Fraud Plan was prepared, reviewed, and updated using a risk-
based approach. The Terms of Reference for each agreed project are also determined using
a risk-based methodology. (John Miller)

12 IT Implications

12.1  N/A.

13 Property Implications
13.1  N/A.

14 Procurement Implications

14.1  N/A.

15 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications
15.1 N/A

16 Equity, Community Cohesion and Crime Implication
16.1 N/A.

17 Equality Impact Assessment Completed

17.1 No.
18 Forward Plan Reference
18.1 N/A.

19 Key Decision
19.1 No.

20 Background Papers

Page 37



20.1

21

21.1

The following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in accordance with
the requirements of Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 1972. It does not include
documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information as defined by the Act

File Ref: Background papers are included as Appendices 1 & 2
Officer Name: John Miller

Contact: john.miller@oldham.gov.uk

Appendices

The following Appendices are available to support this Report:

Appendix 1: Summary of Audit Reports & Outcomes — 1 April to 31 December 2025
o Appendix 2: Counter Fraud Results — 1 April to 31 December 2025

Page 38



6E abed

Appendix 1

Audit and Counter Fraud 2025/26- Summary of Audit Reports/Outcomes - 1 April 2025 to 31 December 2025

Report

Ref Directorate Audit Review/Counter Fraud Report Output Quarter Opinion

PAVPASTIAS

1 Corporate Resources | 2024/25 FFS — Accounts Receivable Reasonable
2 Corporate Resources | 2024/25 FFS — Accounts Payable Reasonable
3 People 2024/25 FFS — Direct Payments Report Q1

4 People 2024/25 FFS — Residential Care Report Q1

5 Corporate Resources | 2024/25 FFS — Debt Recovery Report Q1

6 Place Housing Options Report Q1 Reasonable
7 People St. Agnes C of E Primary School Report Q1 Reasonable
8 Corporate Resources | IT Supplier Management Report Q1

9 Corporate Resources | Cloud Service Management Report Q1

10 Corporate Resources | 2024/25 FFS — Fixed Assets Report Q1 Reasonable
11 Corporate Resources | 2024/25 FFS — Treasury Management Report Q1 Reasonable
12 People Corporate Performance Management, Report Q1

13 Corporate Resources | Overtime Review Report Q1

14 People Children’s to Adults Social Care Transitions Report Q1

15 Corporate Resources | Procurement Act 2023 Report Q1 Reasonable
16 Corporate Resources | 2024/25 FFS — Income Control Report Q1 Reasonable
17 People Whitegate End Primary School Report Q1 Reasonable
18 Corporate Resources | IT Physical Security & Environmental Controls Report Q1 . Limited
19 Place Housing Options Service Report Q2 Reasonable
20 People SEND Mainstream Placements Report Q2 Reasonable
21 Place Street Lighting — Follow up Report Q2 Reasonable
22 Place Energy Management — Follow up Report Q2 Reasonable
23 People St Theresa’s RC Primary School — Follow up Report Q2 Reasonable
24 People Children’s Services Complaints Report Q2




0t abed

25 Corporate Resources | Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards Report Q2
26 People Arts Council Grant - Northmoor Library Grant Assurance Q3

Key:

Opinion Description

The work in this area is either not audit work in nature, such as provision of advice and consultancy, and/or is undertaken
on behalf of third parties.
The work in this area has been undertaken in order to provide assurance that, e.g. funding has been spent as intended
and/or procedures and controls have operated effectively
Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance identified. The system of
Weak/No assurance governance, risk management and control is inadequate to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in
the area audited
_ Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified. Improvement is required to the system of governance,

risk management and control to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited

There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management and control in place. Some issues, non-compliance
or scope for improvement were identified which may put at risk the achievement of objectives in the area audited.
A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, with internal controls operating effectively and being
consistently applied to support the achievement of objectives in the area audited.

Adequate/Reasonable

Good/Substantial

Appendix 2




T obed

Audit and Counter Fraud Q3 2025/26

Counter Fraud Results 1 April 2025 to 31 December 2025

Counter Fraud Team 2025/2026 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Total

Corporate Cases - Positive Results 65 14 21 100
Fraud and Error Overpayments identified as part of Corporate Cases (£) £7,296.39 £43,329.62 £11,656.32 £62,282.33
CTR cases amended as a result of an investigation 18 22 23 63
HB Fraud and Error Overpayments identified as part of a CTR investigation (£) £117.26 £8,369.70 £6,069.80 £14,556.76
CTR Fraud and Error Overpayments identified (£) £25,883.94 £42,885.96 £37,487.64 | £106,257.54
Financial Outcomes £33,297.59 £94,585.28 £55,213.76 | £183,096.63




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 9

Oldham

Council

Report to Audit Committee

Proposed Audit Committee Work Programme
2025/26

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Abdul Jabbar MBE, Deputy Leader /
Cabinet Member for Finance, Corporate Services & Sustainability.

Officer Contact: John Miller, Head of Internal Audit and Counter Fraud
Report Author: John Miller, Head of Internal Audit and Counter Fraud

14 January 2026

Purpose of Report
Attached to this report is the proposed Audit Committee Work Programme for 2025/26.
Executive Summary

The proposed Audit Committee Work Programme is subject to regular review by the
Committee. Attached at Appendix 1 is the suggested programme of work going forward.

The report will be presented by the Head of Internal Audit and Counter Fraud.
Recommendations

That Members of the Audit Committee endorse the proposed Audit Committee Work
Programme.

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



G abed

Audit Committee Work Programme for the 2025/26 Municipal Year

Appendix 1

Meeting Date

Wednesday 23 July
2025 at 6.00 pm

Agenda ltem

External Audit Update and Audit Strategy memorandum

Summary of Report Issue

A progress update from the Council’'s External Auditors Forvis
Mazars and presentation of the Audit Strategy Memorandum.

Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Progress Report Q4
2024/25 & Q1 2025/26.

An update report on the progress made by the Internal Audit
Service.

Private Report: Weak and Inadequate / Limited Opinion
Reports

A report on Weak or Inadequate / Limited Audit Opinions
issued for the Committee’s consideration.

Proposed Audit Committee Work Programme for 2025/26

This report detailing the proposed work programme for
2025/26 including actions required to support the approval of
the Statement of Final Accounts which are not yet closed.

2024/25 Annual Audit and Opinion Report to Audit
Committee

This is the Annual Report of the Chief Internal Auditor on the
overall Internal Control Environment of the Council for the
financial year 2024/25.

Draft 2024/25 Annual Statement of Accounts

This is the report to the Audit Committee on the draft
Statement of Accounts which also details the outturn for the
financial year 2023/24.

Treasury Management Review 2024/25

The annual review of Treasury Management for 2024/25 by
the Audit Committee.

Wednesday 22
October 2025, 6.00 pm

Self-Assessment of the work undertaken by the Audit

Committee during 2024/25, and Annual Report to Council.

Update on External Audit Matters.

An assessment of the Committee’s effectiveness during the
year 2024/25 and draft Annual Report to full Council on the
work of the Committee for the year including the Committee’s
action plan for self-development.

An update produced by the External Auditor of issues to be
brought to the attention of this Committee.

Audit Committee

Page 1 of 4



ot abed

Audit Committee Work Programme for the 2025/26 Municipal Year

Appendix 1

Update on progress on audit reports contributing toward
the 2024/25 Limited annual assurance opinion

An update on progress on audit reports contributing toward
the 2024/25 Limited annual assurance opinion.

Weak and Limited Opinion Reports

A report on Weak or Limited Audit Opinions issued for the
Committee’s consideration.

Treasury Management Q1 2024/25

The planned scrutiny of the 2024/25 Treasury Management
Q1 update.

Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Progress Report Q2
2024/25

An update report on the progress made by the Internal Audit
Service.

Forvis Mazars — Enquiries of Management

Draft responses to provide key assurances to support the
External Audit Process which are then discussed by the
Committee.

Proposed Audit Committee Work Programme for 2024/25

This report detailing the proposed work programme for
2023/24 including actions required to support the approval of
the 2023/24 Statement of Accounts.

Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policies

Refreshed and updated suite of the Council’s Anti-Fruad and
Corruption Policies and Procedures.

Audit Committee self-assessment of effectiveness and
annual report to Council

A report on the Audit Committee’s self assessment of its own
effectiveness and proposed report to full Council for the year
2024/25.

Housing Benefit Subsidy Audit

This report considers the feedback on the external audit of the
Housing Benefit Subsidy Grant claim.

Failure to Prevent Fraud Offence — briefing note

A briefing note for Members on the new offence of Failure to
Prevent Fraud arising from the Economic Crime and
Corporate Transparency Act 2023.

Members Allowances

A joint report by the Assistant Director of Governance and
Head of Audit and Counter fraud on work undertaken in
respect of Member allowances.

Audit Committee

Page 2 of 4




) abed

Audit Committee Work Programme for the 2025/26 Municipal Year

Appendix 1

Wednesday 26
November 2025,
6.00pm

Payroll Progress Report

External Audit Update

A report by the Assistant Director of Workforce &
Organisational Culture providing Members with an update on
developments within the Payroll Service.

A progress update from the Council’'s External Auditors Forvis
Mazars.

Draft 2024/25 Annual Statement of Accounts

This is the report to the Audit Committee on the draft
Statement of Accounts which also details the outturn for the
financial year 2023/24.

Wednesday 14
January 2026, 6.00pm

Treasury Management Q2 2024/25

External Audit Update

The planned scrutiny of the 2024/25 Treasury Management
Q2 update.

A progress update from the Council’s External Auditors Forvis
Mazars.

Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2026/27

This report sets out the proposed Treasury Management
Strategy for 2026/27 to support the Corporate Objectives of
the Council.

Internal Audit Progress Report Q3 2025/26

This is the routine report on the progress made against the
agreed audit and counter fraud plan.

Thursday 26 March
2026, 6.00pm

Updated Audit Committee Work Programme for 2025/26.

External Audit Update

A report detailing the proposed work programme for 2025/26.

A progress update from the Council’s External Auditors Forvis
Mazars and presentation of the Audit Strategy Memorandum.

Update on progress on audit reports contributing toward
the 2024/25 Limited annual assurance opinion

An Update on progress on audit reports contributing toward
the 2024/25 Limited annual assurance opinion.

Q3 Treasury Management Update

A report outlining Treasury Management activity in Quarter 3
of 2024/25.

Audit Committee

Page 3 of 4




Audit Committee Work Programme for the 2025/26 Municipal Year

Appendix 1

Final Accounts — Proposed Accounting Policies and
Critical Judgements

In line with best practice, approval is sought for the significant
accounting policies and critical judgements to be adopted in
preparation for the completion of the Statement of Accounts.

External Audit of Teachers’ Pensions Agency Return

This report considers the feedback following the external audit
of the Teachers’ Pension Agency return.

Weak and Inadequate Opinion Reports

A report on Weak or Inadequate Audit Opinions issued for the
Committee’s consideration.

Housing Benefit Subsidy Audit 2024/25

This report considers the feedback on the external audit of the
Housing Benefit Subsidy Grant claim.

Internal Audit Charter 2026/27

An updated Internal Audit Charter for the financial year
2026/27.

81 abed

2026/27 Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Plan

The proposed plan of work for the financial year 2026/27 to
enable review by the Committee.

Audit Committee Work Programme for 2025/26 and a
proposed programme for the future financial year —
2026/27.

A report detailing the remainder of the 2025/26 work
programme and proposed work programme for 2026/27.

Local Code of Corporate Governance

This is an update to the previously agreed Local Code of
Corporate Governance.

Private Report; Update on the Corporate Risk Register

An update on the Corporate Risk Register.

Private Report; Senior Information Risk Owner update

This updates the Audit Committee on the key matters relating
to data protection and information security breaches.

Audit Committee

Page 4 of 4




	Agenda
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	7 Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2026/27
	8 Internal Audit Progress Report Quarter 3 - 2025/26
	9 Audit Committee Work Programme - 2025/26
	January 2026 App 1 Work Programme 2025-26


